การเตรียมไดซัลไฟด์จากไทออลโดยใช้ไฮเปอร์วาเลนต์ไอโอดีน (III)



บทคัดย่อและแฟ้มข้อมูลฉบับเต็มของวิทยานิพนธ์ตั้งแต่ปีการศึกษา 2554 ที่ให้บริการในคลังปัญญาจุฬาฯ (CUIR) เป็นแฟ้มข้อมูลของนิสิตเจ้าของวิทยานิพนธ์ ที่ส่งผ่านทางบัณฑิตวิทยาลัย

The abstract and full text of theses from the academic year 2011 in Chulalongkorn University Intellectual Repository (CUIR) are the thesis authors' files submitted through the University Graduate School.

วิทยานิพนธ์นี้เป็นส่วนหนึ่งของการศึกษาตามหลักสูตรปริญญาวิทยาศาสตรมหาบัณฑิต สาขาวิชาปิโตรเคมีและวิทยาศาสตร์พอลิเมอร์ คณะวิทยาศาสตร์ จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย ปีการศึกษา 2557 ลิขสิทธิ์ของจุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย

PREPARATION OF DISULFIDES FROM THIOLS USING HYPERVALENT IODINE(III)



A Thesis Submitted in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of Master of Science Program in Petrochemistry and Polymer Science Faculty of Science Chulalongkorn University Academic Year 2014 Copyright of Chulalongkorn University

Thesis Title	PREPARATI	ON	OF	DISULFIDES	FROM	THIOLS
	USING HYP	PERVA	ALENT	IODINE(III)		
Ву	Miss Watar	nya K	Krailat			
Field of Study	Petrochem	nistry	and	Polymer Sci	ence	
Thesis Advisor	Assistant P	rofes	ssor S	umrit Wach	arasindhu	, Ph.D.
Thesis Co-Advisor	Associate	Prof	essor	Preecha	Phuwapr	aisirisan,
	Ph.D.					

Accepted by the Faculty of Science, Chulalongkorn University in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Master's Degree

Dean of the Faculty of Science

(Professor Supot Hannongbua, Dr.rer.nat.)

THESIS COMMITTEE

_____Chairman

(Assistant Professor Warinthorn Chavasiri, Ph.D.)

_____Thesis Advisor

(Assistant Professor Sumrit Wacharasindhu, Ph.D.)

(Associate Professor Preecha Phuwapraisirisan, Ph.D.)

.....Examiner

(Associate Professor Nuanphun Chantarasiri, Ph.D.)

.....External Examiner

(Assistant Professor Kanok-on Rayanil, Ph.D.)

วทันยา ไกรลาศ : การเตรียมไดซัลไฟด์จากไทออลโดยใช้ไฮเปอร์วาเลนต์ไอโอดีน (III) (PREPARATION OF DISULFIDES FROM THIOLS USING HYPERVALENT IODINE(III)) อ.ที่ปรึกษาวิทยานิพนธ์หลัก: ผศ. ดร.สัมฤทธิ์ วัชรสินธุ์, อ.ที่ปรึกษาวิทยานิพนธ์ร่วม: รศ. ดร.ปรีชา ภูวไพรศิริศาล, 76 หน้า.

้ ไดซัลไฟด์มีความสำคัญในกระบวนการสังเคราะห์เปปไทด์และยังนำมาใช้ประโยชน์เป็นสาร ทำให้ยางคงรูปในกระบวนการสังเคราะห์ยางได้ โดยทั่วไปการเตรียมไดซัลไฟด์จะใช้ตัวออกซิแดนท์ที่ มีพิษ งานวิจัยนี้ เราจึงพัฒนาการสังเคราะห์ใดซัลไฟด์จากไทออลโดยใช้ไฮเปอร์วาเลนต์ไอโอดีน(III) ซึ่ง เป็นตัวออกซิแดนท์ที่สามารถหาซื้อได้ ราคาไม่แพง และมีความเป็นพิษต่ำ เราได้ทำการการศึกษา ภาวะที่เหมาะสมของ ชนิดไฮเปอร์วาเลนต์ไอโอดีน (III), ปริมาณของไฮเปอร์วาเลนต์ไอโอดีน (III) และ ตัวทำละลาย สำหรับปฏิกิริยาออกซิเดชันของไทออล 1a ได้เป็น ไดซัลไฟด์ 2a และทำการตรวจสอบ โดยใช้เทคนิคโครมาโทกราฟีของเหลวความดันสูง เราได้ทำการศึกษาหาภาวะที่เหมาะสมโดย โดยการ ใช้ไดอะเซทอกซีไอโอโดเบนซีนเป็นตัวออกซิแดนท์ เป็นเวลา 5 นาที ในตัวทำละลายไอโซโพรพานอล มาทำการสังเคราะห์ใดซัลไฟด์จากไทออลทั้งหมด 13 ชนิด ได้ร้อยละผลิตภัณฑ์ 75-95 และปฏิกิริยา สามารถทำได้ที่ภาชนะเปิด นอกจากนี้ยังได้เตรียมตัวออกซิแดนท์ คือ ไดอะเซทอกซีไอโอโดเบนซี นบนตัวรองรับพอลิสไตรีน จากปฏิกิริยาไอโอดิเนชันของพอลิสไตรีนจาก ไอโอดีนและไอโอดีนเพ นตะออกไซด์ ตามด้วยปฏิกิริยาออกซิเดชัน ทั้งกับแอซิติกแอนไฮไดร์และไฮโดเจนเปอร์ออกไซด์ หรือ โซเดียมเปอร์บอเรต โครงสร้างของไดอะเซทอกซีไอโอโดเบนซีนบนตัวรองรับพอลิสไตรีนถูกตรวจสอบ เอกลักษณ์โดยเทคนิคฟูเรียรท์ทรานส์ฟอรม์อินฟราเรดสเปคโตรสโคปี และได้ทำการหาปริมาณของ หมู่ไดอะเซทอกซีไอโอโดฟีนิลที่ติดอยู่บนพอลิเมอร์โดยเทคนิคไอโอโดเมตริกไตเตรชัน ได้ประมาณ 1.26-2.00 มิลลิโมลต่อกรัม และได้นำมาสังเคราะห์ใดซัลไฟด์จากไทออกทั้งหมด 11 ชนิด จากภาวะที่ ได้ทำการศึกษา ได้ไดซัลไฟด์ร้อยละผลิตภัณฑ์ 55-100 ซึ่งข้อดีของไดอะเซทอกซีไอโอโดเบนซีนบนตัว รองรับพอลิสไตรีน คือ สามารถนำกลับมาใช้ใหม่ได้โดยปฏิกิริยาออกซิเดชันกับโซเดียมเปอร์บอเรต และนำมาทำปฏิกิริยาออกซิเดชันกับไทออลได้โดยไม่เสียสมรรถนะ

สาขาวิชา	ปิโตรเคมีและวิทยาศาสตร์พอลิเมอร์	ลายมือชื่อนิสิต
ปีการศึกษา	2557	ลายมือชื่อ อ.ที่ปรึกษาหลัก
		ลายมือชื่อ อ.ที่ปรึกษาร่วม

5572095323 : MAJOR PETROCHEMISTRY AND POLYMER SCIENCE KEYWORDS: HYPERVALENT IODINE (III) / (DIACETOXYIODO)BENZENE / POLYSTYRENE-SUPPORTED (DIACETOXYIODO)BENZENE / PS-DIB / DIB / DISULFIDE

WATANYA KRAILAT: PREPARATION OF DISULFIDES FROM THIOLS USING HYPERVALENT IODINE(III). ADVISOR: ASST. PROF. SUMRIT WACHARASINDHU, Ph.D., CO-ADVISOR: ASSOC. PROF. PREECHA PHUWAPRAISIRISAN, Ph.D., 76 pp.

Disulfides are important compounds for peptide synthesis and use as vulcanizing agents for rubber and elastomers. Traditionally, the preparation of disulfides involves the use of toxic oxidizing agents. In this work, we develop the synthesis of disulfide from thiols using hypervalent iodine (III) which is commercially available, inexpensive and less toxic. We screen type of hypervalent iodine (III), amount of hypervalent iodine (III) and solvents for oxidation of thiols 1a to disulfide 2a under monitoring by HPLC. Under the optimized condition which is the use of (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (DIB) in *i*-PrOH for 5 minute at room temperature, 13 thiols are convert into the corresponding disulfides 75-95 %yields. Importantly, the reaction can be performed in an open-flask reaction in undried solvent. In addition, we prepare the polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (PS-DIB) from iodination of polystyrene by I_2/I_2O_5 followed by oxidation with either Ac₂O/H₂O₂ or NaBO₃ 4H₂O. Structure of prepared PS-DIB is confirmed by FTIR spectroscopy and the loading of the diacetoxyiodo group on polystyrene is determined by traditional iodometric titration giving value of 1.26-2.00 mmol/g. Under the optimized condition, 11 disulfides are successfully prepared in good to high yields (55-100 %). Moreover, PS-DIB can be regenerated by oxidization with NaBO3 4H2O and reused for oxidation of thiol without losing its performance.

Field of Study:	Petrochemistry and	Student's Signature
	Polymer Science	Advisor's Signature
	,	
Academic Year:	2014	Co-Advisor's Signature

V

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

First, of all, I would like to express my highest appreciation to my advisor, Assistant Professor Dr. Sumrit Wacharasindhu, and co-advisor, Associate Professor Dr. Preecha Phuwapraisirisan, Department of Chemistry, Faculty of Science, Chulalongkorn University, for valuable advice, guidance and kindness throughout this research.

The greatest thanks are also extended to Assistant Professor Dr. Warinthorn Chavasiri, and Associate Professor Nuanphun Chantarasiri, Department of Chemistry, Faculty of Science, Chulalongkorn University and Assistant Professor Kanok-on Rayanil, Department of Chemistry, Faculty of Science, Silpakorn University attending as the committee members, for their valuable comments and suggestions.

In particular, I am thankful to the Thailand Research Fund (RSA5780055) and Nanotechnology Center (NANOTEC), NSTDA, Ministry of Science and Technology, Thailand, through its program of Center of Excellence Network. This work is part of the Project for Establishment of Comprehensive Center for Innovative Food, Health Products and Agri-culture supported by the Thai Government Stimulus Package 2 (TKK2555, SP2), the Higher Education Research Promotion and National Research University Project of Thailand, Office of the Higher Education Commission (AM1006A-56), the Ratchadaphiseksomphot Endowment Fund of Chulalongkorn University Fund (Ratchadaphiseksomphot Endowment Fund).

Moreover, special thanks to MAPS group members and friends for help, friendship and understanding throughout.

Finally, I would like to specially thank my family for their love, encouragement and social support throughout my entire education.

CONTENTS

	Page
THAI ABSTRACT	iv
ENGLISH ABSTRACT	V
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	vi
CONTENTS	∨ii
LIST OF SCHEMES	X
LIST OF TABLES	. xii
LIST OF FIGURES	xiii
LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS	x∨ii
CHAPTER I INTRODUCTTION	1
1.1 Introduction of Disulfide	1
1.2 Introduction to Hypervalent iodine III	1
1.3 Literature reviews	2
1.3.1 Literature reviews on hypervalent iodine(III) in organic synthesis	2
1.3.2 Literature reviews on (diacetoxyiodo)benzene, (DIB) in organic	2
122 Literature reviews on polymer supported (diageters inde)henzone	
(PS-DIB) in organic synthesis	7
1.3.4 Literature reviews on disulfides from thiols	9
1.4 Objectives of this research	. 12
CHAPTER II EXPERIMENTAL	. 13
2.1 General information	. 13
2.2 Using hypervalent iodine(III) for preparation of disulfides from thiols	. 13
2.2.1 Optimization of the reaction conditions	. 13

	Page
2.2.2 Screening of thiols	14
2.3 Polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene for oxidation of thiols into disulfides	17
2.3.1 Synthesis of polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene PS-DIB and characterization	17
2.3.2 Determination of loading of (diacetoxyiodo)phenyl group on PS-DIB	18
2.3.3 Utilization of PS-DIB for oxidization of thiols	19
2.2.3.1 Optimization of the reaction conditions	19
2.3.3.2 Screening of thiols	19
CHAPTER III RESULTS AND DISCUSSION	22
3.1 Using hypervalent iodine(III) for preparation of disulfides from thiols	22
3.1.1 Optimization study	22
3.1.2 Substrate screening	25
3.2 Polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene for oxidation of thiols into disulfides	28
3.2.1 Synthesis of polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene PS-DIB	
and characterization	29
3.2.2 Determination of loading of (diacetoxyiodo)phenyl group on PS-DIB	31
3.2.3 Utilization of PS-DIB for oxidization of thiols	33
3.2.3.1 Optimization study	33
3.3.3.2 Substrate scope	36
3.2.4 Regeneration and reuse of PS-DIB	38
CHAPTER IV CONCLUSION	41
REFERENCES	42

APPENDIX	
VITA	



จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University ix

Page

LIST OF SCHEMES

Page
Scheme 1.1 Chlorination of 4-aminoacetophenone
Scheme 1.2 Oxidative coupling of aromatic substrates Oxidative coupling of
aromatic substrates
Scheme 1.3 Fluorination of α -selanylesters
Scheme 1.4 Synthesis of isoxazolines from aldoximes and Baylis–Hillman
adducts
Scheme 1.5 Oxidative Transformations of nerol to Nepal
Scheme 1.6 Synthesis of 2,2-dihalo-N-phenylacetamides
Scheme 1.7 Synthesis of ketone compounds from oxidation of benzylic C-H
Scheme 1.8 Synthesis of glycosyl carboxamides from aldehyde and amine
Scheme 1.9 Synthesis of $C(sp^3)$ –O bonds from benzylic $C(sp^3)$ –H bonds and N-
hydroxyamides
Scheme 1.10 Synthesis of benzimidazoles, aminobenzoxazoles and
imidazolidenecarbothio-amides from o-phenylenediamine, o-aminophenol and
1,2-diamines
Scheme 1.11 Synthesis of 2-(1,4-dihydropyrimidin-2-ylthio)pyrimidine derivatives
from 4-Aryl-6-methyl-3,4-dihydropyrimidin-2(1H)-thione7
Scheme 1.12 Preparation of polymer-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene
Scheme 1.13 Synthesis of 2-aryl-1,3-dioxolanes 3and 2-aryl-1,3-tetrahydrofurans
from alcohols
Scheme 1.14 Synthesis of aldehydes from vicinal diols
Scheme 1.15 Synthesis of benzimidazoles, benzoxazoles, and benzothiazoloes
from amine and aldehyde9

Scheme 1.16 Synthesis of nitriles from aldehydes.	9
Scheme 1.17 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using nanophase manganese(VII)	
oxide coated clay	9
Scheme 1.18 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using [bmim][SeO2(OCH3)]	. 10
Scheme 1.19 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using ascorbic acid (vitamin C)	. 10
Scheme 1.20 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using bis(4-methoxyphenyl)	
telluride	. 10
Scheme 1.21 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using 1%H ₂ O ₂ catalyzed TBAI	. 10
Scheme 1.22 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using Fe NPs @ SBA-15 with H_2O_2	. 11
Scheme 1.23 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using $(NH_4)_6Mo_7O_{24}$ •4H ₂ O	. 11
Scheme 1.24 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using visible-light irradiation of	
CdSe QDs	. 11
Scheme 1.25 Utilization hypervalent iodine (III) to synthesized disulfides.	. 12
Scheme 1.26 Utilization of Polymer-supported hypervalent iodine (III) reagent for	
preparation of disulfide. Θ = polymer	. 12
Scheme 2.1 lodometric titration.	. 18
Scheme 3.1 Proposed mechanism of disulfide formation.	. 28
Scheme 3.2 Utilization of polymer-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene reagent for	
preparation of disulfide. \bigcirc = polymer	. 28
Scheme 3.3 Synthesis of PS-DIB from method A and B	. 29
Scheme 3.4 lodometric titration.	. 31
Scheme 3.5 Utilization of Polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene reagent	
for preparation of disulfide. \bigcirc = polystyrene	. 39

LIST OF TABLES

Table 3.1 Hypervalent iodine (III) screening	22
Table 3.2 Effect of amount of DIB (3a) on the yield of 2a	24
Table 3.3 Effect of solvent	25
Table 3.4 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols	26
Table 3.5 The loading of functional group	32
Table 3.6 Amount of PS-DIB	34
Table 3.7 Effect of time	35
Table 3.8 Solvent effect	36
Table 3.9 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols	37
Table 3.10 Regeneration and reuse of PS-DIB for oxidation of 1a	40

จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chui ai angkapa Haiversity

LIST OF FIGURES

	Page
Figure 3.1 HPLC chromatogram of oxidation of 4-chlorothiophenol in <i>i</i> -PrOH	
reaction	25
Figure 3.2 Color appearance of PS (left), PS-I (middle) and PS-DIB (right).	30
Figure 3.3 FT-IR spectra of PS, PS-I and PS-DIB	30
Figure 3.4 Color appearance of solution of PS-DIB, KI, H_2SO_4 in chloroform/water	-
for titration. A) before addition of starch solution B) after addition of starch	
solution C) after titrated with $Na_2S_2O_3$.	32
Figure 3.5 GC chromatogram of oxidation of 4-chlorothiophenol in i-PrOH	
reaction	33
Figure A1 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.2, entry 1)	48
Figure A2 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.2, entry 2)	48
Figure A3 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.2, entry 3)	48
Figure A4 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.2, entry 4)	48
Figure A5 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 1)	49
Figure A6 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3, entry 2)	49
Figure A7 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 3)	49
Figure A8 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 4)	49
Figure A9 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 5)	50
Figure A10 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 6)	50
Figure A11 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 7)	50
Figure A12 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 8)	50
Figure A13 ¹ H NMR spectrum of 2a (CDCl ₃)	51

Figure A14 ¹³ C NMR spectrum of 2a (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A15 ¹ H NMR spectrum of 2b (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A16 ¹³ C NMR spectrum of 2b (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A17 ¹ H NMR spectrum of 2c (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A18 ¹³ C NMR spectrum of 2c (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A19 ¹ H NMR spectrum of 2d (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A20 ¹³ C NMR spectrum of 2d (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A21 ¹ H NMR spectrum of 2e (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A22 ¹³ C NMR spectrum of 2e (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A23 ¹ H NMR spectrum of 2f (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A24 ¹³ C NMR spectrum of 2f (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A25 ¹ H NMR spectrum of 2g (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A26 ¹³ C NMR spectrum of 2g (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A27 ¹ H NMR spectrum of 2h (CDCl3)	
Figure A28 ¹³ C NMR spectrum of 2h (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A29 ¹ H NMR spectrum of 2i (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A30 ¹³ C NMR spectrum of 2i (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A31 ¹ H NMR spectrum of 2j (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A32 ¹³ C NMR spectrum of 2j (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A33 ¹ H NMR spectrum of 2k (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A34 ¹³ C NMR spectrum of 2k (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A35 ¹ H NMR spectrum of 2l (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A36 ¹³ C NMR spectrum of 2l (CDCl ₃)	
Figure A37 ¹ H NMR spectrum of 2m (CDCl ₃)	

Figure A38 ¹³ C NMR spectrum of 2m (CDCl ₃)	63
Figure A39 FT-IR spectrum of 2a	64
Figure A40 FT-IR spectrum of 2b	64
Figure A41 FT-IR spectrum of 2c	65
Figure A42 FT-IR spectrum of 2d	65
Figure A43 FT-IR spectrum of 2e	65
Figure A44 FT-IR spectrum of 2f	66
Figure A45 FT-IR spectrum of 2g	66
Figure A46 FT-IR spectrum of 2h	67
Figure A47 FT-IR spectrum of 2i	67
Figure A48 FT-IR spectrum of 2j	68
Figure A49 FT-IR spectrum of 2k	68
Figure A50 FT-IR spectrum of 21	69
Figure A51 FT-IR spectrum of 2m	69
Figure A52 FT-IR spectrum of polystyrene (PS)	69
Figure A53 FT-IR spectrum of PS-1	70
Figure A54 FT-IR spectrum of PS-DIB	70
Figure A55 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.6, entry 1)	71
Figure A56 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.6, entry 2)	71
Figure A57 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.6, entry 3)	71
Figure A58 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.6, entry 4)	72
Figure A59 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.7, entry 1)	72
Figure A60 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.7, entry 2)	72
Figure A61 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.7, entry 3)	73

Figure A62 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.7, entry 4)	.73
Figure A63 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.8, entry 1)	.73
Figure A64 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.8, entry 2)	.74
Figure A65 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.8, entry 3)	. 74



จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

¹³ C NMR	carbon-13 nuclear magnetic resonance	
CDCl ₃	deuterated chloroform	
d	doublet (NMR)	
DCE	1,2-dichloroethane	
DIB	(diacetoxy)iodo benzene	
dd	doublet of doublet	
d	doublet (NMR)	
equiv.	equivalent (s)	
FTIR	Fourier transform infrared spectroscopy	
g	gram (s)	
GC	Gas chromatography	
h	hour (s)	
1H	NMR proton nuclear magnetic resonance	
Hz	hertz	
HPLC	High-performance liquid chromatography	
J	coupling comstant (NMR)	
kJ	kilojoule (s)	
m	multiplet (NMR)	
MeOH	methanol	
min	minute (s)	
mL	milliliter (s)	
mmol	milimole (s)	
NMR	nuclear magnetic resonance	
PS-DIB	polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene	
PS-I	iodopolystyrene	
PS	polystyrene	
RT	room temperature	

5	singlet (NMR)
t	triplet (NMR)
TfOH	trifluoromethanesulfonic acid
TLC	thin layer chromatography
UV	ultra violet
%	percent
\propto	alpha
β	beta
δ	chemical shift (NMR)
°C	degree Celsius
μ L	microliter (s)
μ M	micromolar (s)
%	yield percent yield

จุหาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University

CHAPTER I

1.1 Introduction of Disulfide

Disulfide is a compound containing two linked sulfur atoms. They are important compounds in both biological and chemical processes that involved the peptide synthesis [1], protein stabilization [2], and disulfides have industrial applications as vulcanizing agents [3]. The common methods to synthesize disulfides are oxidation of thiols using various oxidizing agent such as transition metal oxides [4], nitric oxide [5], H_2O_2 [6], $I_2/CeCl_37H_2O$ [7], 2,6-dicarboxy pyridinium chlorochromate [8], KMnO₄/CuSO₄ [9], halogens [10], etc. However, there are some disadvantages such as high toxicity, expensive reagent, difficult work-up and long reaction times. Moreover, such strong oxidizing agents can lead to over-oxidized products such as thiosulfinates, thiosulfonates and sulfonic acids. Thus, many new methods for synthesis of disulfide have been developed to clean, mild and efficient oxidative method that produced disulfide in high yield with convenient work-up step. Herein, we reported the use of hypervalent iodine (III) for oxidation of thiols into disulfides which it is a low cost and low toxicity reagent.

1.2 Introduction to Hypervalent iodine III

The first hypervalent iodine compound reported by the Conrad Willgerodt in 1886 as (dichloroiodo)benzene ($C_6H_5Cl_2I$) [11]. Since then, hypervalent iodine(III) are iodine compounds that have been used extensively in organic synthesis due to the chemical properties have similar to heavy metal reagent such as Hg(III), Pb(IV) or Ti(III) but without toxicity. Moreover, hypervalent iodine reagents are commercial availability, mild and highly selective oxidizing agents [12].

Classes of Hypervalent Iodine (III)

Ligands attached to the iodine atom are used for classification of hypervalent iodine (III). These are general hypervalent iodine (III) compound that have found many applications in organic synthesis.

- 1. (difluoroiodo)arenes; R, R'= F
- 2. (dichloroiodo)arenes; R, R'= Cl
- 3. [bis(acyloxy)iodo]arenes; R, R'= OCOR
- 4. aryliodine(III) organosulfonates; R= OH R'= OSO₂R

Difluoroiodo)arenes were synthesized from fluorination of iodoarenes with F_{2} , ClF, CF₃OCl, BrF₅, C₆F₅BrF₂, C₆F₅BrF₄, XeF₂, XeF₂/BF₃, etc [12]. (Difluoroiodo)benzene and difluoroiodotoluene (DFIT) were frequently used as fluorinating agent in organic Among (dichloroiodo)arenes, (dichloroiodo)benzene and synthesis. 4.4'bis(dichloroiodo)biphenyl were widely used for chlorinating reagents. On the other hand, (bis(trifluoroacetoxy)iodo)benzene (BTI) and diacetoxyiodobenzene (DIB) are most used reagent in the class of [bis(acyloxy)iodo]arenes for oxygenation and oxidative functionalization of organic substrates. For aryliodine(III) organosulfonates, hydroxy(tosyloxy)iodobenzene (HTIB) or Koser's reagent was commonly used as strong oxidizing agent.

1.3 Literature reviews

1.3.1 Literature reviews on hypervalent iodine(III) in organic synthesis

As mention above, hypervalent iodine(III) were used for several synthetic application such as used as halogenation, oxidative transformations of organic substrates [12], in this section we summarized the recent use of such reagent as followed.

In 1998, Zanka and co-worker [13] described reagents for scaled up chlorination of electron-rich aromatic compounds as shown in scheme 1.1. They used (dichloroiodo)benzene (PhlCl₂) as chlorinating reagent to synthesize 4-amino-3chloroacetophenone 2 from aminoacetophenone 1.

R Ar—I

2



Scheme 1.1 Chlorination of 4-aminoacetophenone

In 2002, Tohma and co-workers [14] developed the use of [bis(trifluoroacetoxy)iodo]benzene (**BTI**) in oxidative coupling reaction of nonphenolic electron-rich aromatic substrate. Alkylbiaryls **4** was occurred from alkylarenes **3** by using a combination of [bis(trifluoroacetoxy)iodo]benzene (**BTI**) and BF₃•OEt₂ as shown in scheme 1.2.



Scheme 1.2 Oxidative coupling of aromatic substrates Oxidative coupling of aromatic substrates.

In 2005, Maria and co-worker [15] developed the fluorinations of $\mathbf{\alpha}$ selanylesters 5 derivatives lead to $\mathbf{\alpha}$ -fluoro $\mathbf{\alpha}$ -phenylselanyl esters 6 by using
(difluoroiodo)toluene (TollF₂) as shown in scheme 1.3. The advantage of this method
was avoiding the use of chlorine and fluorine gas. Moreover, the reactions were clean
and no further oxidized products under the reaction conditions were detected.



R= Ph, $CH_2CH=CHPh$, $CH_2CH=CMe_2$, etc.

Scheme 1.3 Fluorination of $\mathbf{\Omega}$ -selanylesters

1.3.2 Literature reviews on (diacetoxyiodo)benzene, (DIB) in organic synthesis

Among hypervalent iodine (III) reagent, (diacetoxyiodo)benzene, (**DIB**) is one of most used reagent in hypervalent iodines (III) family. This is because of wild availability, inexpensive and less toxic in comparison with other hypervalent iodine(III). Therefore, we summarized the application of **DIB** in organic synthesis as followed.

In 2004, Das and co-worker [16] studied the use of (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (DIB) for synthesis isoxazolines 9 from aldoximes 7 and Baylis–Hillman adducts 8 as seen in scheme 1.4. This reaction was completed in 60-90 minute at either 0° C or room temperature to give the product in 78-91 % yields.



Scheme 1.4 Synthesis of isoxazolines from aldoximes and Baylis–Hillman adducts.

In 2009, Piancatelli and co-workers [17] reported the oxidation of alcohols (nerol **10**) using (diacetoxyiodo)benzene, (**DIB**) in catalytic amounts of TEMPO (2,2,6,6-tetramethylpiperidin-1-oxyl) to nepal **11** as seen in scheme 1.5. Nepal **11** was produced in good yield in aqueous solution.





In 2012, Liu and co-worker [18] developed a simple and efficient method for the synthesis of 2,2-dihalo-N-phenylacetamides **13** from 3-oxobutanamides **12** by using (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (**DIB**) and Lewis acids such as FeCl₃ ZnCl₂ and CuCl₂ as seen in scheme 1.6. The advantages of this method are mild condition, various substrate scope and excellent yields.



Scheme 1.6 Synthesis of 2,2-dihalo-N-phenylacetamides.

In 2012, Vikas and co-worker [19] developed the oxidation of benzylic C-H **14** to corresponding ketone **15** compounds from (diacetoxyiodo)benzene with a catalytic sodium azide as shown in scheme 1.7. The advantages of this reaction were mild condition and short reaction time.



Scheme 1.7 Synthesis of ketone compounds from oxidation of benzylic C-H.

In 2012, Prasad and co-workers [20] developed the one-step oxidative amidation of aldehyde **16** with amine **17** to glycosyl carboxamides **18** under mild conditions using ionic liquid in 78-96 % yields with (diacetoxyiodo)benzene as shown in scheme 1.8.



Scheme 1.8 Synthesis of glycosyl carboxamides from aldehyde and amine.

In 2015, Qian and co-worker [21] developed the use of (diacetoxyiodo)benzene for oxygenation of benzylic **19** $C(sp^3)$ -H bonds with benzamides **20a** and 2-arylacetamides **20b** to form $C(sp^3)$ -O bonds in **21a** and **21b** at room temperature as seen in scheme 1.9.



Scheme 1.9 Synthesis of $C(sp^3)$ –O bonds from benzylic $C(sp^3)$ –H bonds and N-hydroxyamides.

In 2008, Ghosh and co-workers [22] used (diacetoxyiodo)benzene for the synthesis of isothiocyanates 23 from the corresponding dithiocarbamate salts 22 in good to excellent yields. After that, they developed one-pot procedure for the synthesis of benzimidazoles 27, aminobenzoxazoles 28 and imidazolidenecarbothio-amides 29 from o-phenylenediamine 24, o-aminophenol 25 and 1,2-diamines 26, respectively in the presence of DIB in good to excellent yield as shown in scheme 1.10. This is the first work reported on the use of hypervalent iodine (III) to activate sulfur atom instead of carbon atom.



Scheme 1.10 Synthesis of benzimidazoles, aminobenzoxazoles and imidazolidenecarbothio-amides from o-phenylenediamine, o-aminophenol and 1,2-diamines.

While we investigated the use of **DIB** to activate thiol, Bhagyashree and coworkers [23] used (diacetoxyiodo)benzene to activate sulfur atom on 4-Aryl-6methyl-3,4-dihydropyrimidin-2(1H)-thione **30** to produce 2-(1,4-dihydropyrimidin-2ylthio)pyrimidine derivatives **31** in acetic acid in 2013 as shown in scheme 1.11.



Scheme 1.11 Synthesis of 2-(1,4-dihydropyrimidin-2-ylthio)pyrimidine derivatives from 4-Aryl-6-methyl-3,4-dihydropyrimidin-2(1H)-thione.

Based on above literature reviews, most of hypervalent iodine (III) was used for ether halogenation or oxygenation on carbon atom. However, in recent year, there was reports on activation of sulfur atom on thione derivatives using (diacetoxyiodo)benzene. Therefore in this work, we will investigated the used of (diacetoxyiodo)benzene for activation of sulfur atom on thiol which have never been reported before.

1.3.3 Literature reviews on polymer supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene, (PS-DIB) in organic synthesis

Even though, the (diacetoxyiodo)benzene reagent was extensively used in organic synthesis, the reagent was inconvenient to reuse or recycle and generated toxic byproduct. Those were caused by homogeneous nature of **DIB** and also the iodobenzene byproduct was usually dissolved in reaction mixture. Therefore, several researchers reported the preparation of hypervalent iodine (III) reagent as a form on polymer-supported which were recyclable and reusable reagent. Polymer-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene was prepared by iodination on polystyrene lead to iodopolystyrene and was further oxidized by hydrogen peroxide and acetic anhydride as shown in scheme 1.12. Consequently, we summarize the application of polymer-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene in organic synthesis as followed.



Scheme 1.12 Preparation of polymer-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene.

In 2005, Teduka and co-worker [24] used polymer-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (**PS-DIB**) with iodine under irradiation with a tungsten lamp for the preparation of 2-aryl-1,3-dioxolanes **33** and 2-aryl-1,3-tetrahydrofurans **34** from the corresponding alcohols **32** as shown in scheme 1.13. This reaction was used in acetonitrile at 30° C and gave the desired products in 55-76 % yield after flash column chromatography. Moreover, after these reactions, polymer were regenerated and reused for 2 times without losing its efficiency.



Scheme 1.13 Synthesis of 2-aryl-1,3-dioxolanes 3and 2-aryl-1,3-tetrahydrofurans from alcohols.

In 2006, Chen and co-workers [25] synthesized aldehydes **36** from highly selective oxidative cleavage of vicinal diols **35** by using polymer-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene, (**PS-DIB**) in high isolated yield. The advantages of this method are mild conditions, non-toxic and easy reaction work-up by simple filtration to remove the polymer-supported reagent. Moreover, **PS-DIB** can be regenerated and reused for the same reactions with the same efficiency.



Scheme 1.14 Synthesis of aldehydes from vicinal diols.

In 2009, Kumar and co-workers [26] demonstrated a practical synthetic route to benzimidazoles **39-1**, benzoxazoles **39-2**, and benzothiazoloes **39-3** from reaction between corresponding amines **37** and corresponding aldehydes **38** using polymersupported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (**PS-DIB**) as seen in scheme 1.15. The reaction was completed in 5-10 minutes at room temperature in CH₂Cl₂ and gave excellent yields after silica-gel column chromatography. **PS-DIB** can be reused many times without losing the activity.



Scheme 1.15 Synthesis of benzimidazoles, benzoxazoles, and benzothiazoloes from amine and aldehyde.

In 2010, Zhu and co-workers [27] developed a one pot synthesis of nitriles 40 from aldehydes 41 using polymer-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (PS-DIB) in excellent yield based on GC analysis as seen in scheme 1.16. The reactions proceed in water at 70 °C in the presence of catalytic amounts of sodium dodecylsulfate (SDS) using NH_4OAc as the nitrogen source. Moreover, PS-DIB was successfully regenerated and reused three times with the same activity in excellent yield.



Scheme 1.16 Synthesis of nitriles from aldehydes.

1.3.4 Literature reviews on disulfides from thiols

Recent development for synthesis of thiols from disulfides has been focused on the use of new reagent which was mild and efficient as followed.

In 2009, Gondi and co-workers [28] developed the use of a nanophase manganese(VII) oxide coated clay (NM7O coated clay) catalyst for the synthesis of disulfides from thiols as seen in scheme 1.17. Moreover, NM7O coated clay catalyst can be recycled and reused.



Scheme 1.17 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using nanophase manganese(VII) oxide coated clay.

In 2010, Thurow and co-workers [29] successfully synthesized disulfides via thiols using 1-n-butyl-3-methylimidazolium methylselenite, [bmim][SeO₂(OCH₃)] as shown in scheme 1.18. Such reagent is ionic liquid that used both as solvent and catalyst and easily reuse for further oxidation reactions. The reaction was completed in conventional heating 3-18 hour at 60 $^{\circ}$ C or under microwave irradiation in 15 min at 30 $^{\circ}$ C.

2R-SH
$$[bmim][SeO_2(OCH_3)] \longrightarrow RS-SR$$

$$60^{\circ}C \text{ or MW at } 30^{\circ}C, \text{ air} \qquad (91-99\%)$$

Scheme 1.18 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using [bmim][SeO2(OCH3)].

In 2010, Attri and co-workers [30] developed the use of ascorbic acid (vitamin C) for the synthesis of disulfides from thiols in short reaction time and excellent yields as shown in scheme 1.19. Ascorbic acid (vitamin C) has several advantages such as inexpensive and environmentally benign catalyst in organic synthesis.

R-SH
$$\xrightarrow{\text{Ascorbic acid } (5 \text{ mol}\%)-\text{H}_2\text{O}}$$
 RS-SR
rt, 5-10 min. (90-100%)

Scheme 1.19 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using ascorbic acid (vitamin C).

In 2011, Oba and co-workers [31] reported the synthesis of disulfides from aerobic oxidation of thiols using diaryl tellurides such as bis(4-methoxyphenyl) telluride under photosensitized conditions in good to excellent yields as shown in scheme 1.20.

2 R-SH
$$\xrightarrow{An_2Te (1 \text{ mol } \%), \text{ sensitizer } (0.1 \text{ mM})}{\text{solvent } (0.1 \text{ M}), \text{hv}, \text{air, } 0^{\circ}\text{C}}$$
 RS-SR

Scheme 1.20 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using bis(4-methoxyphenyl) telluride.

In 2012, He and co-workers [32] synthesized corresponding disulfides from corresponding thiols using 1% hydrogen peroxide catalyzed tetrabutylammonium iodide (TBAI) without solvent at room temperature as shown in scheme 1.21. In this reaction the desired disulfides was obtained in 93-98 % yields in short reaction time.

$$R-SH \xrightarrow{\text{TBAI, 1%H}_2O_2} RS-SR$$

$$rt \xrightarrow{(93-98\%)}$$

Scheme 1.21 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using 1%H₂O₂ catalyzed TBAI.

In 2013, Rajabi and co-workers [33] studied the use of supported iron oxide nanoparticles ,Fe NPs @ SBA-15 as environmentally friendly and reusable catalysts with H_2O_2 as a green oxidant for synthesizing disulfides from thiols at room temperature in excellent yields as shown in scheme 1.22. The utilized catalyst was successfully reusable under the reaction conditions in 5 times with the same activity.

2R-SH
$$\xrightarrow{\text{Fe NPs @ SBA-15}}$$
 RS-SR
 H_2O_2 , CH₃CN, rt
R = Aryl, Benzyl

Scheme 1.22 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using Fe NPs @ SBA-15 with H_2O_2 .

In 2013, Bayraq and co-workers [34] synthesized disulfides from thiols using ammonium molybdate, $(NH_4)_6Mo_7O_{24}$ •4H₂O as a cheap, safe and stable catalyst in high yield as shown in scheme 1.23. Moreover, this catalyst can be recovered and reused in the same condition with the same activity.

2R-SH $(KBrO_3/(NH_4)_6Mo_7O_{24}.4H_2O)$ rt, 5-55 min, CH₃CN/H₂O RS-SR (85-98%)

Scheme 1.23 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using (NH₄)₆Mo₇O₂₄•4H₂O.

In 2015, li and co-worker [35] developed the use of visible-light irradiation of CdSe quantum dots (CdSe QDs) to coupling of a variety of thiols lead to disulfides and H_2 without reagents in good yield and the reaction was added the small amounts of nickel(II) salts to rapidly improve of conversion as shown in 1.24. In addition, CdSe QDs can be regenerated and reused and gave a loss of activity of only approximately 5% between the first and last runs.

2R-SH CdSe QDs, Ni²⁺
solvent,
$$\lambda > 400$$
 nm, rt RS-SR + H₂

Scheme 1.24 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols using visible-light irradiation of CdSe QDs.

Among the method mentioned in literature reviews, they have still some disadvantages for synthesis of disulfide including the use of transition metal which are toxic and expensive. Moreover, some conditions were difficult for work-up and required long reaction time. In addition, the reaction generated over-oxidized byproducts such as thiosulfinates, thiosulfonates and sulfonic acids. Based on the advantages of hypervalent iodine (III) reagents such as commercial availability, mild and highly selective oxidizing agents, we will use such reagent for oxidation of thiol into disulfide.

1.4 Objectives of this research

According to the reviews, hypervalent iondine (III) has been widely used as oxidizing agents for organic synthesis but there is no report on the use for oxidizing thiols into disulfide. The advantages of hypervalent iondine (III) are low cost, mild and highly selective properties, environmental friendly character and commercial availability. In this work we will 1) investigate the use of hypervalent iodine (III) to synthesize disulfides from thiols as shown in scheme 1.25. Optimization of the reaction conditions based on the types of hypervalent iodine (III), solvent, and equivalent of hypervalent iodine (III) will be examined.

Scheme 1.25 Utilization hypervalent iodine (III) to synthesized disulfides.

In addition, we will 2) develop polymer-supported hypervalent iodine (III) as reusable reagents for oxidizing thiols as shown in scheme 1.26 and study the reaction optimization including solvent, equivalent of polymer-supported hypervalent iodine (III) and reaction time of reaction.



Scheme 1.26 Utilization of Polymer-supported hypervalent iodine (III) reagent for preparation of disulfide. \bigcirc = polymer

CHAPTER II EXPERIMENTAL

2.1 General information

Starting materials were purchased from commercial suppliers and used without further purification. All solvent were used without drying from Sigma-Aldrich. Analytical thin-layer chromatography (TLC) was performed on Kieselgel F-254 precoated plastic TLC plates from EM Science and visualized under 254 nm ultraviolet lamp. Column chromatography was carried out with ICN Silitech silica gel 60 (70-230 mesh). MS (ESI) and HRMS (ESI) were obtained with a micro TOF Bruker mass spectrometer. ¹H and ¹³C NMR spectra were recorded on a Varian 400 MHz and Bruker 400 MHz in CDCl₃. Chemical shifts of ¹H and ¹³C NMR were reported in ppm (δ) and referenced to CHCl₃ (δ 7.26 for ¹H, δ 77.00 for ¹³C). Coupling constant (J) were reported in Hertz (Hz). Fourier transform infrared spectra were obtained on Nicolet 6700 FT-IR spectrometer furnished with a mercury-cadminum telluride (MCT) detector (Nicolet, USA). The gas chromatography (GC) was completed using Agilent CP 8741 gas chromatography instrument equipped with a flame ionization detector (FID) with N_2 as a carrier gas using 30m long CP sil5 (0.25 mm outer diameter, 0.25 µm film thickness). High performance liquid chromatography (HPLC) analysis was carried out on a HPLC system including a plum (Water 1525 with column heater), auto sampler (Waters 2707) and detector (Waters2489 UV detector). Chromatographic separation was performed on sunfire 5 μ m C18 4.6x150 mm using mobile phases was an isocratic system of methanol/water (80:20) at a flow rate of 0.5 mL/min. The system was monitored at 254 of UV-dectector.

2.2 Using hypervalent iodine(III) for preparation of disulfides from thiols

2.2.1 Optimization of the reaction conditions

 Table 3.1 Hypervalent iodine(III) screening: 4-chlorothiophenol (1a) 20.0 mg

 (1.0 equiv) and hypervalent iodine (III) (1.0 equiv) were mixed with 4 mL of *i*-PrOH in

round bottom flask with magnetic stir bar to give 1,2-Bis(4-chlorophenyl)disulfane (**2a**). The mixture was stirred at ambient temperature. The solvent was removed by rotary evaporation and the crude product was purified by silica gel chromatography.

Table 3.2 Effect of DIB amount: 4-chlorothiophenol (**1a**) 20.0 mg (1.0 equiv) and (diacetoxyiodo)benzene, **DIB** were mixed with 4 mL of *i*-PrOH in round bottom flask with magnetic stir bar. The mixture was stirred at ambient temperature for 5 minute to give 1,2-Bis(4-chlorophenyl)disulfane (**2a**). The solvent was removed by rotary evaporation and the crude product was purified by silica gel chromatography.

Table 3. Effect of solvent: 4-chlorothiophenol (1a) 20.0 mg (1.0 equiv) and (diacetoxyiodo)benzene, **DIB** (1.0 equiv) were mixed with 4 mL of solvents in round bottom flask with magnetic stir bar. The mixture was stirred at ambient temperature for 5 minute to give 1,2-Bis(4-chlorophenyl)disulfane (**2a**). The solvent was removed by rotary evaporation and the crude product was monitored by HPLC

2.2.2 Screening of thiols

General procedure for synthesis of disulfides 2a–m from thiol 1a-m using (diactoxyiodo)benzene as reagent: thiols 1a-m (1.0 equiv) and DIB (1.0 equiv) were mixed with *i*-PrOH as solvent with magnetic stir bar. The mixture was stirred at ambient temperature for 5 minute to give disulfides (2a-m). The solvent was removed by rotary evaporation and the crude product was purified by silica gel chromatography.

1,2-Bis(4-chlorophenyl)disulfane (2a) : synthesized according to general procedure from 4-chlorothiophenol **1a** (100 mg, 0.691 mmol) and **DIB** (222 mg, 0.691 mmol) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (4 mL) to afford **2a** (86.6 mg, 0.346 mmol, 87%) as a yellow solid. ¹H NMR (CDCl₃, 400 MHz): δ = 7.40 (d, *J* = 8.7 Hz, 4 H), 7.27 (d, *J* = 8.7 Hz, 4 H) ppm. ¹³C NMR (CDCl₃, 100 MHz): δ = 135.2, 133.7, 129.4, 129.3 ppm. IR (neat): V = 3079, 2925, 1470, 1385 cm⁻¹.

6,6-Disulfanediyldihexan-1-ol (2b): [CAS: 80901-86-6]: synthesized according to general procedure from 6-mercapto-1-hexanol 1b (101 μ L, 0.745 mmol) and DIB (240 mg, 0.745 mmol) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (4 mL) to afford 2b (87.0 mg, 0.373 mmol, 87%) as a yellow solid. ¹H NMR (CDCl₃, 400 MHz): δ = 3.66 (t, J = 6.6 Hz, 4 H), 2.77–

2.62 (m, 4 H), 1.71 (m, 4 H), 1.59 (m, 4 H), 1.51–1.34 (m, 8 H) ppm. ¹³C NMR (CDCl₃, 100 MHz): δ = 62.8, 39.1, 32.6, 29.1, 28.2, 25.4 ppm. IR (neat): V = 3346, 2934, 2859, 1465, 1053 cm⁻¹.

1,2-Dioctyldisulfane (2c) : [CAS: 822-27-5]: synthesized according to general procedure from 1-octanethiol **1c** (118 μ L, 0.684 mmol) and **DIB** (220 mg, 0.684 mmol) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (4 mL) to afford **2b** (89.0 mg, 0.342 mmol, 90%) as a colorless oil. ¹H NMR (CDCl₃, 400 MHz): δ = 3.30 (m, 4 H), 2.70 (m, 4 H), 1.69 (t, *J* = 7.5 Hz, 4 H), 1.30 (d, *J* = 2.7 Hz, 16 H), 0.9 (s, 6 H) ppm. ¹³C NMR (CDCl₃, 100 MHz): δ = 39.2, 31.8, 29.2, 28.6, 22.6, 14.1 ppm. IR (neat): V^{-} = 3056, 2928, 2859, 1268, 1131 cm⁻¹.

1,2-Dicyclohexyldisulfane (2d): [CAS: 2550-40-5]: synthesized according to general procedure from cyclohexanethiol 1d (101 μ L 0.860 mmol) and, DIB (277 mg, 0.860 mmol) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (4 mL) to afford 2d (79.7 mg, 0.430 mmol, 80%) as white crystals. ¹H NMR (CDCl₃, 400 MHz): **δ**= 2.65 (m, 2 H), 2.01 (s, 4 H), 1.77 (s, 4 H), 1.60 (t, J = 6 Hz, 2 H), 1.25 (m, 10 H) ppm. ¹³C NMR (CHCl₃, 100 MHz): **δ** = 50.0, 32.9, 26.1, 25.7 ppm. IR (neat): \vec{V} = 2931, 2853, 1450, 1340, 1262 cm⁻¹.

1,2-DIBenzyldisulfane (2e): [CAS: 150-60-7]: synthesized according to general procedure from benzyl mercaptan **1e** (94.0 μ L, 0.804 mmol) and **DIB** (277 mg, 0.804 mmol) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (4 mL) to afford **2e** (85.7 mg, 0.402 mmol, 86%) as pink crystals. ¹H NMR (CDCl₃, 400 MHz): δ = 7.37–7.29 (m, 10 H), 3.65 (s, 4 H) ppm. ¹³C NMR (CDCl₃, 100 MHz): δ = 137.4, 129.4, 128.5, 127.4, 43.4 ppm. IR (neat): V = 3052, 3029, 2914, 2857, 1497, 1456, 1405 cm⁻¹.

2,2 -Disulfanediyldianiline (2f): [CAS: 1141-88-4]: synthesized according to general procedure from 2-aminothiophenol **1f** (85.0 μ L, 0.799 mmol) and **DIB** (257 mg, 0.799 mmol) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (4 mL) to afford **2f** (74.6 mg, 0.399 mmol, 75%) as a yellow solid. ¹H NMR (CDCl₃, 400 MHz): δ = 7.18 (t, *J* = 11.0 Hz, 4 H), 6.74 (m, 2 H), 6.62 (m, 2 H), 4.19 (s, 4 H) ppm. ¹³C NMR (CDCl₃, 100 MHz): δ = 148.6, 136.8, 131.6, 118.8, 115.3 ppm. IR (neat): \tilde{V} = 3377, 3294, 3067, 2925, 2852, 1606, 1580, 1470, 1441 cm⁻¹.

1,2-Di-p-tolyldisulfane (2g): [CAS: 103-19-5]: synthesized according to general procedure from 4-methyl thiophenol **1g** (100 mg, 0.804 mmol) and **DIB** (259 mg, 0.804 mmol) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (4 mL) to afford **2g** (94.4, 0.402 mmol, 95%) as a yellow oil. ¹H NMR (CDCl₃, 400 MHz): δ = 7.30 (d, *J* = 8.4 Hz, 4 H), 7.03 (d, *J* = 8.4 Hz, 4 H), 2.24 (s, 6 H) ppm. ¹³C NMR (CDCl₃, 100 MHz): δ = 137.5, 133.9, 129.8, 128.6, 21.0 ppm. IR (neat): V = 3020, 2914, 2852, 1488, 1397 cm–1.

1,2-Di(pyridine-2-yl)disulfane (2h): [CAS: 2127-03-9]: synthesized according to general procedure from 2-mercaptopyridine **1h** (50.0 mg, 0.450 mmol), **DIB** (159 mg, 0.495 mmol) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (4 mL) to afford **2h** (44.4 mg, 0.202 mmol, 90%) as a white solid. ¹H NMR (CDCl₃, 400 MHz): δ = 8.40 (d, *J* = 8.1 Hz, 2 H), 7.60–7.49 (m, 4 H), 7.04 (m, 2 H) ppm. ¹³C NMR (CDCl₃, 100 MHz): δ = 159.0, 149.6, 137.4, 121.1, 119.7 ppm. IR (neat): V = 3046, 2987, 1574, 1556, 1444, 1414 cm–1.

1,2-Di(pyridin-4-yl)disulfane (2i): [CAS: 2645-22-9]: synthesized according to general procedure from 4-mercaptopyridine **1i** (50.0 mg, 0.450 mmol) and **DIB** (159 mg, 0.495 mmol) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (4 mL) to afford **2i** (42.6 mg, 0.194 mmol, 86%) as a white solid. ¹H NMR (CDCl₃, 400 MHz): δ = 8.42 (d, *J* = 5.5 Hz, 4 H), 7.29 (d, *J* = 5.5 Hz, 4 H) ppm. ¹³C NMR (CDCl₃, 100 MHz): δ = 148.9, 145.3, 119.0 ppm. IR (neat): V = 3032, 3002, 2922, 1568, 1544, 1479, 1405 cm⁻¹.

1,2-Bis(5-bromopyridin-2-yl)disulfane (2J): [CAS: 872273-36-4]: synthesized according to general procedure from 5-bromopyridine-2- thiol **1J** (100 mg, 0.526 mmol) and **DIB** (169 mg, 0.526 mmol) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (4 mL) to afford **2J** (81.5 mg, 0.263 mmol, 82%) as yellow crystals. ¹H NMR (CDCl₃, 400 MHz): δ = 8.45 (d, *J* = 2.4 Hz, 2 H), 7.66 (dd, *J* = 8.5, 2.4 Hz, 2 H), 7.43 (d, *J* = 8.5 Hz, 2 H) ppm. ¹³C NMR (CDCl₃, 100 MHz): δ = 157.2, 150.6, 139.9, 121.1, 118.3 ppm. IR (neat): V^{-} = 3099, 3058, 2922, 1550, 1438, 1343 cm⁻¹.

1,2-Di(pyrimidin-2-yl)disulfane (2k): [CAS: 15718-46-4]: synthesized according to general procedure from 2-mercaptopyrimidine 1k (100.00 mg, 0.89 mmol) and DIB (287.31 mg, 0.89 mmol) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (4.0 mL) to afford 2k (74.00 mg, 0.45 mmol, 75%) as yellow crystals. ¹H NMR (CDCl₃, 400 MHz): δ = 8.52 (d, J = 4.8 Hz, 4 H), 7.02 (t, J = 4.8 Hz, 2 H) ppm. ¹³C NMR (CDCl₃, 100 MHz): δ = 169.8,

157.9, 118.1, 29.7 ppm. IR (neat): V = 3114, 3067, 2919, 2846, 1550, 1426, 1364, 1264 cm⁻¹.

1,2-Bis(benzo[d]thiazol-2-yl)disulfane (2l): [CAS: 120-78-5]: synthesized according to general procedure from 2-mercaptobenzothiazole **1l** (100 mg, 0.599 mmol), **DIB** (192 mg, 0.599 mmol) in *i*-PrOH (4 mL) to afford **2l** (85.9 mg, 0.299 mmol, 89%) as a white solid. ¹H NMR (CDCl₃, 400 MHz): δ = 7.87 (d, *J* = 8.1 Hz, 2 H), 7.70 (d, *J* = 8.1 Hz, 2 H), 7.40 (t, *J* = 7.2 Hz, 2 H), 7.29 (t, *J* = 7.2 Hz, 2H) ppm. ¹³C NMR (CDCl₃, 100 MHz): δ = 167.8, 154.5, 136.2, 126.6, 125.3, 122.7, 121.3 ppm. IR (neat): V = 3058, 2978, 2928, 2869, 1464, 1423, 1317, 1237 cm⁻¹.

1,2-Di(quinolin-2-yl)disulfane (2m): [CAS: 2889-13-6]: synthesized according to general procedure from quinoline-2-thiol **1m** (100 mg, 0.620 mmol) and **DIB** (199 mg, 0.620 mmol) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (4 mL) to afford **2m** (90.4 mg, 0.310 mmol, 91%) as a yellow solid. ¹H NMR (CDCl₃, 400 MHz): δ = 7.95 (m, 4 H), 7.74 (d, *J* = 8.0 Hz, 2 H), 7.65 (m, 4 H), 7.42 (t, *J* = 8.0 Hz, 2 H) ppm. ¹³C NMR (CDCl₃, 100 MHz): δ = 158.3, 146.9, 136.5, 129.4, 127.3, 126.7, 125.4, 124.4, 116.3 ppm. IR (neat): V = 3058, 2922, 2849, 1612, 1585, 1556, 1491, 1447, 1423 cm⁻¹.

2.3 Polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene for oxidation of thiols into disulfides.

2.3.1 Synthesis of polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene PS-DIB and characterization

Synthesis of poly (4-iodostyrene) (PS-I) [36]: To a mixture of nitrobenzene (50 mL), carbon tetrachloride (10 mL) and sulfuric acid (50%, 9 mL) were added commercially available polystyrene (MW=35,000) (4 g, 38.25 mmol), iodine (4.5 g, (17.75 mmol), and iodine pentaoxide (1.79 g, 5.36 mmol) at room temperature and the reaction was stirred under reflux at 90°C for 72 h. After that, methanol 400 mL was added into the reaction mixture and the precipitate was collected by filtration and washed with methanol and dried to give strong yellowish solid (8.79 g, 93 % yield).

Synthesis of polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (PS-DIB):

Method A [36] A solution of poly (4-iodostyrene) (5.2 g, 22.61 mmol), acitic acid (113 mL), 1,2 dichloroethane (7 mL), and trifluoromethanesulfonic acid (12 mL, 135.66 mmol) was stirred at 40°C. Then, sodium perborate tetrahydrate (20.88 g, 135.66 mmol) was added slowly within 2 hour. After the reaction that, solvents were evaporated by rotary evaporation and water 40 mL was added into the reaction. The precipitate was filtered, washed with methanol and dried to give yellow powder (5.89 g, 69 % yield).

Method B [25] A solution of 30% hydrogen peroxide (27 mL, 895.01 mmol) was added dropwise into acetic anhydride (97 mL, 1030.91 mmol) and stirred at 40 °C for 4 hour. Then, poly(4-iodostyrene) (5.2 g) was added into the reaction mixture and stirred overnight. Diethyl ether 100 mL was then added into the reaction. The precipitate was filtrated, washed with methanol and dried under vacuum to give yellow powder (4.64 g, 54 % yield).

2.3.2 Determination of loading of (diacetoxyiodo)phenyl group on PS-DIB

lodometric titration

The loading of the reagent was determined by iodometric titration [37]. A mixture of polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (0.031 g), potassium iodide (0.250 g), deionized water (12.5 mL), sulfuric acid (6 N, 1.25 mL), and chloroform (1.25 mL) were added in 50 mL flask and stirred for 4 hour. The reaction mixture was titrated with 0.1 N sodium thiosulfate using starch solution as indicator based on scheme 2.1. The polymer loading of (diacetoxyiodo)phenyl group could be calculated as 27% form the equation shown below:



Scheme 2.1 lodometric titration.
The polymer loading of (diacetoxyiodo)phenyl group

1/2 x N x V Gram of **PS-DIB**

(Equation 2.1)

=

2.3.3 Utilization of PS-DIB for oxidization of thiols

2.2.3.1 Optimization of the reaction conditions

Table 3.6 Effect of PS-DIB amount: 4-chlorothiophenol (1a) 20.0 mg (1.0 equiv) and polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene PS-DIB were mixed with 5 mL of *i*-PrOH in round bottom flask with magnetic stir bar. The mixture was stirred at ambient temperature for 60 min to give 1,2-Bis(4-chlorophenyl)disulfane (2a). The precipitate was filtrated, washed with methanol and solvent was removed by rotary evaporation. The % yield of disulfide 2a was received from GC analysis based on internal standard using biphenyl.

Table 3.7 Effect of time: 4-chlorothiophenol (1a) 20.0 mg (1.0 equiv) and polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene PS-DIB (0.7 equiv) were mixed with 5 mL of *i*-PrOH in round bottom flask with magnetic stir bar. The mixture was stirred at ambient temperature to give 1,2-Bis(4-chlorophenyl)disulfane (2a). The precipitate was filtrated, washed with methanol and solvent was removed by rotary evaporation. The % yield of disulfide 2a was received from GC analysis based on internal standard using biphenyl.

Table 3.8 Effect of solvent: 4-chlorothiophenol (1a) 20.0 mg (1.0 equiv) and polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene PS-DIB (0.7 equiv) were mixed with 5 mL of solvent in round bottom flask with magnetic stir bar. The mixture was stirred at ambient temperature for 60 minute to give 1,2-Bis(4-chlorophenyl)disulfane (2a). The precipitate was filtrated, washed with methanol and solvent was removed by rotary evaporation. The % yield of disulfide 2a was received from GC analysis based on internal standard using biphenyl.

2.3.3.2 Screening of thiols

General procedure for synthesis of disulfides **2a–J** and **m** from thiol **1a–J**, **m** using polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene **PS-DIB** as reagent: thiols **1a–J**,

m (1.0 equiv) and **DIB** (0.7 equiv) were mixed with *i*-PrOH as solvent with magnetic stir bar. The mixture was stirred at ambient temperature for 60 minute to give disulfides (**2a-J**, **m**). The solvent was removed by rotary evaporation and the crude product was purified by silica gel chromatography.

1,2-Bis(4-chlorophenyl)disulfane (2a) : synthesized according to general procedure from 4-chlorothiophenol **1a** (50 mg, 0.346 mmol) and **PS-DIB** 0.7 equiv. (192 mg, 0.242 mmol, 1.26mmol/g) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (5 mL) to afford **2a** (44.0 mg, 0.173 mmol, 89%) as a yellow solid.

6,6-Disulfanediyldihexan-1-ol (2b): [CAS: 80901-86-6]: synthesized according to general procedure from 6-mercapto-1-hexanol 1b (50.76 μ L, 0.372 mmol) and PS-DIB 2.5 equiv. (669 mg, 0.930 mmol, 1.39 mmol/g) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (5 mL) to afford 2b (51.2 mg, 0.186 mmol, 103%) as a yellow solid.

1,2-Dioctyldisulfane (2c) : [CAS: 822-27-5]: synthesized according to general procedure from 1-octanethiol **1c** (59.4 μ L, 0.342 mmol) and **PS-DIB** 1.0 equiv. (120 mg, 0.171 mmol, 2.0 mmol/g) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (5 mL) to afford **2c** (45.4 mg, 0.171 mmol, 91%) as a colorless oil.

1,2-Dicyclohexyldisulfane (2d): [CAS: 2550-40-5]: synthesized according to general procedure from cyclohexanethiol 1d (50.5 μ L 0.426 mmol) and, PS-DIB 1.0 equiv. (338 mg, 0.426 mmol, 1.26mmol/g) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (5 mL) to afford 2d (46.8 mg, 0.213 mmol,95%) as white crystals.

1,2-DIBenzyldisulfane (2e): [CAS: 150-60-7]: synthesized according to general procedure from benzyl mercaptan **1e** (47.26 μ L, 0.0.402 mmol) and **PS-DIB** 1.0 equiv. (201 mg, 0.402 mmol, 2.0 mmol/g) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (5 mL) to afford **2e** (46.6 mg, 0.201 mmol, 94%) as pink crystals.

2,2 -Disulfanediyldianiline (2f): [CAS: 1141-88-4]: synthesized according to general procedure from 2-aminothiophenol 1f (42.74 μ L, 0.399 mmol) and PS-DIB 2.0 equiv. (574 mg, 0.799 mmol, 1.39 mmol/g) dissolved in i-PrOH (5mL) to afford 2f (80.0 mg, 0.200 mmol, 81%) as a yellow solid.

1,2-Di-p-tolyldisulfane (2g): [CAS: 103-19-5]: synthesized according to general procedure from 4-methyl thiophenol **1g** (50 mg, 0.403 mmol) and **PS-DIB** 0.7 equiv.

(224 mg, 0.282 mmol, 1.26mmol/g) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (5 mL) to afford **2g** (43.3, 0.201 mmol, 97%) as a yellow oil.

1,2-Di(pyridine-2-yl)disulfane (2h): [CAS: 2127-03-9]: synthesized according to general procedure from 2-mercaptopyridine **1h** (50.0 mg, 0.450 mmol), **PS-DIB** 0.7 equiv. (250 mg, 0.315 mmol, 1.26mmol/g) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (5 mL) to afford **2h** (41.3 mg, 0.225 mmol, 83%) as a white solid.

1,2-Di(pyridin-4-yl)disulfane (2i): [CAS: 2645-22-9]: synthesized according to general procedure from 4-mercaptopyridine **1i** (50.0 mg, 0.450 mmol) and **PS-DIB** 1.5 equiv. (486 mg, 0.675 mmol, 1.39mmol/g) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (5 mL)] to afford **2i** (34.6 mg, 0.225 mmol, 70%) as a white solid.

1,2-Bis(5-bromopyridin-2-yl)disulfane (2J): [CAS: 872273-36-4]: synthesized according to general procedure from 5-bromopyridine-2-thiol 1J (50 mg, 0.263 mmol) and **PS-DIB** 1.5 equiv. (284 mg, 0.395 mmol, 1.39 mmol/g) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (5 mL) to afford **2J** (27.4 mg, 0.132 mmol, 55%) as yellow crystals.

1,2-Di(quinolin-2-yl)disulfane (2m): [CAS: 2889-13-6]: synthesized according to general procedure from quinoline-2-thiol **1m** (50 mg, 0.446 mmol) and **PS-DIB** 0.7 equiv. (156 mg, 0.312 mmol, 2.0 mmol/g) dissolved in *i*-PrOH (5 mL) to afford **2m** (48.2 mg, 0.223 mmol, 97%) as a yellow solid.

จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University

CHAPTER III

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

3.1 Using hypervalent iodine(III) for preparation of disulfides from thiols

3.1.1 Optimization study

In this work, we plan to develop the method for synthesize of disulfides via thiol using hypervalent iodine(III) reagents. First, 4 types of hypervalent iodine(III) such as (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (3a), [bis(trifluoroacetoxy)iodo]benzene (3b), [hydroxy(tosyloxy)-iodo]benzene (3c) and bis(tert-butylcarbonyloxy)iodobenzene) (3d) were treated with 4-chlorothiophenol in *i*-PrOH at room temperature in open flask to provide 1,2-bis(4-chlorophenyl)disulfane. The results were summarized in Table 3.1. Hypervalent iodine(III) reagents (3b-d) gave disulfide (2a) in moderate yields (55-72%, entry 2-4) while 3a was able to convert thiol into disulfide (2a) 87% yield within 5 min. We hypothesized that hypervalent reagents (III) 3b-3d were sensitive to oxygen and moisture which could decompose under our reaction condition. (Diacetoxyiodo)benzene not only gave the best yield for synthesize of disulfide but it is also wildly available and inexpensive price comparing to other tested hypervalent iodines (III). Therefore, we selected (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (3a) as the oxidizing agent for further investigation.

Table 3.1 Hypervalent iodine (III) screening



	Entry ^[a]	Reagent	Time	Yeld (%) ^[b]
	1	н ₃ с о сн ₃ (3а) (Diacetoxyiodo)benzene	5 min.	87
	2	[Bis(trifluoroacetoxy)iodo]benzene	3hr.	55
	3	H ₃ C O O (3c) [Hydroxy(tosyloxy)-iodo]benzene	10 min.	54
	4	O Ph O t-Bu O I O t-Bu (3d) Bis(tert-butylcarbonyloxy)iodobenzene	45 min.	72

[a] Reaction conditions: 4-chlorothiophenol (1.0 equiv.), hypervalent iodine (1.0 equiv.), *i*-PrOH, r.t., open air. [b] Isolated yield after silica gel chromatography.

Next, we varied amount of (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (DIB) from 0.3-1.0 equivalent in the oxidation of 4-chlorothiophenol, and the yields of disulfide 2a were reported in table 3.2. The reactions were carried out in *i*-PrOH at room temperature and were monitored by HPLC after 5 min. At 0.3 equivalent of DIB, only 84% conversion of 1a to 2a was observed (Table 3.2, entry 1). We found that the oxidation reaction was completed when used DIB at least 0.5 equiv. of DIB in the reaction (Table 3.2, entry 2-4). However, in order to ensure the completeness of the oxidation reaction, we decided to use 1 equivalent of DIB for further study.

CISH	DIB → CI→	s - CI
1a		2a
Entry ^[a]	Equivalent of DIB	Conversion
LIIUY	(mmol)	(%) ^[b]
1	0.3	84
2	0.5	100
3	0.7	100
4	1.0	100

Table 3.2 Effect of amount of DIB (3a) on the yield of 2a

[a] Reaction conditions: 4-chlorothiophenol (1.0 equiv.), **DIB**, *i*-PrOH, r.t., under air, 5 min. [b] Determined by HPLC analysis.

For the next optimization study, a number of solvents were tested for the oxidation of 4-chlorothiophenol with 1.0 equivalent of (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (DIB) at room temperature in open air conditions. Eight different solvents were tested and the results were presented in Table 3.3. 100% conversion to disulfide (2a) was received from all tested solvents based on HPLC monitoring. As an example, the chromatogram of crude reaction (Table 3.1, entry 4) was shown in figure 3.1. Under our HPLC condition, retentions time of standards 1a and 2a were 4.4 and 28.4 minute, respectively. Other chromatograms were displayed in Appendix. In *i*-PrOH as solvent, the chromatogram of crude reaction showed only product to 2a without any remaining starting 1a. These results indicated a high solvent compatibility of the reaction that can be applied to every solvent system. Based on solvent guideline from Astra Zeneca, GSK and Pfizer, *i*-PrOH was selected as a solvent of choice for drug manufacturing due to its less toxicity. Therefore, we choose *i*-PrOH as solvent for disulfide synthesis for further studies.

Table 3.3 Effect of solvent



[a] Reaction conditions: 4-chlorothiophenol (1.0 equiv.), **DIB** (1.0 equiv.), *i*-PrOH, r.t., under air, 5 min. [b] Determined by HPLC analysis.



Figure 3.1 HPLC chromatogram of oxidation of 4-chlorothiophenol in *i*-PrOH reaction.

3.1.2 Substrate screening

Based on above results, the optimization reaction for disulfide synthesis was the use of 1.0 equivalent of (diacetoxyiodo)benzene in *i*-PrOH at room temperature in open air conditions. This method was simple, mild and convenient reaction. With the optimized conditions in hand, the present reaction was further expanded to explore the generality and scope of this reaction by using a variety of thiols including aliphatic, cyclic aromatic, and heterocyclic substrates as shown in Table 3.4. Aliphatic thiols (1b,1c, entries 1 and 2) and cyclic thiol (1d, entry 3) were oxidized under optimized condition to give the corresponding disulfides in very good yields and the desired disulfides 2b-2d were isolated in 87, 89 and 80% yields, respectively, after column chromatography. For thiol 1b, both hydroxyl and thiol functional groups were presented in the same substrate but **DIB** selectively reacted with thiol only. Moreover, benzyl mercaptan 1e was oxidized into disulfide in 86% yield (Table 3.4, entry 4). Aromatic thiols such as 2-aminothiophenol 1f and 4-methyl thiophenol 1g containing electron-donating group were successfully transformed into the desired disulfides **2f** and **2g** in fair to excellent yields (Table 3.4, entries 5 and 7). In addition, aromatic thiol having chloro substituent (1a) was converted into the corresponding disulfides 2a in excellent yield (87%) (Table 3.4, entry 6). The nitrogen-containing heteroaromatic thiols such as **1h-j** were oxidized into the corresponding disulfides 2h-j (Table 3.4, entries 8-10) with yields ranging between 77-90%. In some cases, disulfides were isolated in moderated yields (Table 3.4, Entries 5, 9 and 13), even though, there were no remaining stating thiols in crude reaction. These observations were caused, by strong binding between silica gel and N heteroatom in disulfide in purification step. Moreover, bicyclic aromatic thiol (1k) and heterocyclic thiols containing two heteroatoms (11-m) could be converted to disulfides in excellent yields (Table 3.4, entry 12 and 13).

	1.				
	2 R-S⊓ ── (1a-m)	r.t., 5	i min.	(2a-m)	
Entry	Substrate	Yield (%) ^[a]	Entry	Substrate	Yield (%) ^[a]
1	HO SH 1b	87	8	1h	90

Table 3.4 Synthesis of disulfides from thiols



[a] Isolated yield after silica gel chromatography

3.1.3 Proposed mechanism

For plausible mechanism of disulfide formation, we hypothesized that sulfur atom of thiol attacks iodine in **DIB** leading to the formation of sulfenyl iodide intermediate (1) and acetate ion as shown in Scheme 3.1. Then, another molecule of thiol undergoes nucleophilic substitution with sulfur atom in (1). Ligand disengages from 1 to produce the isolated disulfide product along with iodobenzene (2) as byproduct.



Scheme 3.1 Proposed mechanism of disulfide formation.

3.2 Polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene for oxidation of thiols into disulfides.

According to the preparation of disulfides from thiols using hypervalent iodine (III), the reaction produced iodobenzene as by-product. The disadvantages of this process are 1) the difficulty in removing disulfide from reaction mixture and 2) **DIB** reagent cannot be recyclable. To overcome these problems, we decided to synthesize hypervalent iodine bounded to a polymeric support (Scheme 3.2). After the use of such reagent, it should be able to convert thiols into disulfides and the iodobenzene will remain on the polymeric support. Furthermore, the disulfide product could be isolated by simple filtration, thus simplifying the isolation step. Moreover, the iodobenzene attached to supported-polymer will be able to recover into hypervalent iodine on polymer. This will allow the polymer to be recyclable in the reaction process [24].



Scheme 3.2 Utilization of polymer-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene reagent for preparation of disulfide. \bigcirc = polymer

3.2.1 Synthesis of polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene PS-DIB and characterization

For the polymer support selection, we decided to use polystyrene for several reasons. The structure of polystyrene has a long chain hydrocarbon wherein alternating carbon centers are attached to benzene ring which alike (diacetoxyiodo)benzene structure. In addition, polystyrene is inexpensive and widely available. Therefore, planned synthesize polystyrene-supported we to (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (PS-DIB) from polystyrene. Initially, PS-DIB was prepared from iodopolystyrene (PS-I) by iodination of commercially available polystyrene (MW=35,000) and I_2/I_2O_5 in the mixture of CCl₄/nitrobenzene solution under acidic condition as presented in Scheme 3.3. The appearance of iodopolystyrene (PS-I) was showed in Figure 3.2 (middle) as strong yellowish solid. Then, PS-DIB was successfully prepared from PS-I by two different oxidation methods A and B. The method A used Ac_2O/H_2O_2 as the oxidizing reagent [25] while method B utilized NaBO₃.H₂O as oxidizing reagent in acetic acid/1,2-dichloroethane as solvent and triflic acid as additive [36]. After the reaction was completed, the resulting PS-DIB products from both methods were isolated by filtration to give yellow powder as shown in Figure 3.2 (right).



Scheme 3.3 Synthesis of PS-DIB from method A and B.



Figure 3.2 Color appearance of PS (left), PS-I (middle) and PS-DIB (right).

The structure of **PS-DIB** was confirmed by FTIR spectroscopy as shown in Figure 3.3. The spectra showed commercially available polystyrene (**PS**), iodopolystyrene (**PS-I**) and polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (**PS-DIB**). The **PS-I** showed the reduction of C-H (aromatic) stretching peak at 3020 cm⁻¹, indicating the successful iodination of the benzene ring in polystyrene. In addition, the structure of polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo) benzene (**PS-DIB**) was confirmed by the existence of C=O stretching peaks in the diacetoxy group at 1636 and 1724 cm⁻¹



Figure 3.3 FT-IR spectra of PS, PS-I and PS-DIB.

3.2.2 Determination of loading of (diacetoxyiodo)phenyl group on PS-DIB

The loading of the diacetoxyiodo group on polystyrene was determined by traditional iodometric titration [37]. The reaction for the iodometric titration using our prepared **PS-DIB** were demonstrated in Scheme 3.4. The reaction is based on the oxidation of KI by **PS-DIB** to generate I_2 which further react with $Na_2S_2O_3$. Therefore, the amount of $Na_2S_2O_3$ used in the reaction is proportional to (diacetoxyiodo)phenyl group on **PS-DIB**.



Scheme 3.4 lodometric titration.

First, **PS-DIB** and KI were dissolved in mixed chloroform/sulfuric acid for 4 hour to produce I₂ via oxidation reaction showing the brown solution as seen in figure 3.4**A**. After that the reaction mixture was titrated with Na₂S₂O₃ for 0.3-0.5 mL and starch solution was added to the mixture producing blue color (Figure 3.4**B**). Then, Na₂S₂O₃ was further titrated until the end point giving the colorless solution (Figure 3.4**C**). The iodometric titration results from **PS-DIBs** prepared from methods A and B were depicted in Table 3.5. In each **PS-DIB**, it was washed by MeOH, dried and titrated in each cycles to evaluate the loading of diacetoxyiodo group in **PS-DIB**.



Figure 3.4 Color appearance of solution of **PS-DIB**, KI, H_2SO_4 in chloroform/water for titration. A) before addition of starch solution B) after addition of starch solution C) after titrated with $Na_2S_2O_3$.

The result from method A indicated that the loading of the (diacetoxyiodo)phenyl group on the polystyrene decreased continually after washing with MeOH while **PS-DIB** obtained from method B remained constant after the third wash. We hypothesized that **PS-DIB** prepared from method A contained unreacted H_2O_2 which was washed away after by MeOH. Therefore, we observed the decrease in loading of the (diacetoxyiodo)phenyl group. On the other hands, the consistency from method B may result from remaining oxidizing agent, NaBO₃.H₂O. According to the result, we therefore choose the oxidizing agent, NaBO₃.H₂O (method B) to use as a standard method for the preparation of **PS-DIB** throughout this work and it was freshly titrated prior to use.

Mashed time	Loading of diacetoxyiodo group (mmol) in PS-DIB			
washed time	Method A	Method B		
1 st	2.13	1.87		
2 nd	2.28	1.61		
3 rd	2.36	1.19		
4 th	1.90	1.19		
5 th	1.41	1.19		

Table 2	E The	loading	of functional	group
Table 5	.9 me	loauing	or runctionat	group

3.2.3 Utilization of PS-DIB for oxidization of thiols

3.2.3.1 Optimization study

PS-DIBs were synthesized by method B, giving the loading of the (diacetoxyiodo)phenyl group on the polystyrene in the range of 1.26-2.00 mmol/g. To investigate the oxidizing ability of our prepared **PS-DIB**, we selected the 4-chlorothiophenol as model for optimization study. 4-Chlorothiophenol (**1a**) was converted to 1,2-bis(4-chlorophenyl)disulfane (**2a**) using **PS-DIB**. The reactions were monitored by gas chromatography and several factors including amount of **PS-DIB**, time and types of solvent were also investigated.

In this study, the %yields were received from GC analysis based on internal standard using biphenyl. The example of chromatogram of crude product in the present of biphenyl was shown in figure 3.5. The retentions time at 4.5 and 6.1 and 10.4 minute corresponded to starting **1a**, internal standard biphenyl and **2a**, respectively. Other chromatograms were displayed in figure A 55 to A 68 Appendix.





Initially, we screened the amount of **PS-DIB** by increasing amount of polymersupported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (**PS-DIB**) from 0.7 to 2.0 equivalent and yields of disulfide **2a** were summarized in Table 3.6. All reactions were implemented in *i*-PrOH at room temperature and monitored by GC chromatography after 60 min. The oxidation reaction was completed when using 0.7 equiv. of **PS-DIB** in the reaction and gave quantitative yield of disulfide **2a** (Table 3.6, entry 1). When increasing amount of **PS-DIB** from 0.7 to 1.1, 1.5, and 2.0 equiv. (Table 3.6, entry 2-4), yields of disulfide **2a** were dropped to 80, 80, 68%, respectively. We assumed that low yields of product **2a** were resulted from the generation of unidentified byproduct when **PS-DIB** were used excessively. We observed unidentified peak in GC chromatogram at retention time of 6.1 minute (Appendix figure A 55 to A 58). We therefore decided to use 0.7 equivalent of **PS-DIB** as optimal condition.

Table	3.6	Amount	of	PS-DIB
-------	-----	--------	----	--------

CI \longrightarrow SH i -PrOH, rt, 60 min i i -PrOH, rt, 60 min $2a$							
Entry ^[a]	Equivalent of PS-DIB (mmol)	Yields (%) ^[b]	Product : Unknown				
1	0.7	quantitative	92.8 : 7.2				
2	1.1	80	86.4 : 13.6				
3	1.5	80	88.2 : 11.8				
4	2.0จุฬาลงก	68 68	84.0 : 16.0				

[a] Reaction conditions: 4-chlorothiophenol (1.0 equiv.), PS-DIB, *i*-PrOH, r.t., under air,60 min. [b] Determined by GC analysis.

Then, we optimized reaction time from 5 minutes to overnight using 0.7 equiv. of **PS-DIB** in *i*-PrOH at room temperature and monitored by GC chromatography as shown in Table 3.7. The results indicated that the reaction times at 5 and 30 minutes are insufficient, causing incomplete conversion of starting material as shown in table 3.7, entries 1 and 2. The oxidation reaction was completed after 60 minute as shown in entry 3 with quantitative yield of product **2a**. (Appendix figure A 59 to A 62). Therefore, we decided to use 60 minutes as optimized reaction time in the presence of 0.7 equivalent of **PS-DIB** for further investigation.

Table 3.7 Effect of time

CI	≻SHi i-PrO	Ac Ac _(0.7 eq.) H, rt		s 2a
Entry ^[a]	Time	Yield of 2a (%) ^[b]	Remaining 1a (%) ^[b]	Product : unknown
1	5 min	86	8	93.7 : 6.3
2	30 min	87	7	93.2 : 6.8
3	60 min 📄	quantitative	-	92.8 : 7.2
4	overnight	quantitative	- -	92.4 : 7.6

[a] Reaction conditions: 4-chlorothiophenol (1.0 equiv.), **PS-DIB** (0.7 equiv.), *i*-PrOH, r.t., under air. [b] Determined by GC analysis.

Next, the effect of solvents was investigated by reaction of 4chlorothiophenol with 0.7 equivalent of **PS-DIB** at room temperature in open air conditions with seven different solvents and the results were presented in Table 3.8. When reactions were carried out in EtOAc, toluene, dimethyl carbonate, *n*-butanol and *i*-PrOH/H₂O (1:1) as solvents, starting material **1a** was recovered around 5-13% and produced target **2a** in good yield (Table 3.8 entryies 1-3 and 5-6). In addition, the use of DMSO as solvent gave complete conversion but product **2a** was observed in 89 %yield (Table 8, entry 7). The highest yield of disulfide **2a** was received when the reaction was performed in *i*-PrOH. Notably, *i*-PrOH was selected as a solvent of choice from Astra Zeneca, GSK and Pfizer solvent guideline [38] as one of the best green solvent. Based on above optimization study, we concluded that the optimal condition for conversion of **1a** to **2a** is performing the reaction with 0.7 eq. of **PS-DIB** in *i*-PrOH at room temperature for 60 minutes.

Table 3.8 Solvent effect

$CI \longrightarrow SH \xrightarrow{OAc} OAc \xrightarrow$							
Entry ^[a]	Solvents	Yield of 2a (%) ^[b]	Remaining 1a (%) ^[b]				
1	Ethyl acetate	67	5				
2	Toluene	71	11				
3	Dimethyl carbonate	80	9				
4	Isopropyl alcohol	quantitative	0				
5	n-butanol	81	5				
6	<i>i-</i> PrOH/H ₂ O (1:1)	89	13				
7	DMSO	89	0				

[a] Reaction conditions: 4-chlorothiophenol (1.0 equiv.), **PS-DIB** (0.7 equiv.), r.t., under air 60 min. [b] Determined by GC analysis.

3.3.3.2 Substrate scope

To extend the generality and scope of this work, we synthesized disulfides from a variety of thiols including aliphatic, cyclic aromatic, and heterocyclic substrates under the optimized reaction as shown in Table 3.9. The optimization reaction for disulfide synthesis was the use of 0.7 equivalent of polymer-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene for 60 minutes in *i*-PrOH at room temperature in open air conditions. Aromatic thiols **1a** and **1g** containing chloro and methyl substituents, respectively were subjected to the optimization condition to give the responding disulfide **2a** and **2g** in excellent yields after column chromatography (Table 3.9, entry 6-7). The oxidation of aliphatic thiols 1c, 1e and cyclic thiol 1d were synthesized under optimization condition and gave incomplete reactions. However, the reactions were completed when amount of **PS-DIB** was increased up to 1.0 equivalent. These reactions gave the desired disulfides 2c, 2d and 2e in 91, 95 and 94 %yields, respectively (Table 3.9, entry 2-4). To test the selectivity of oxidization using PS-DIB, we selected thiols 1b and 1f (Table 3.9, entry 1 and 5) having hydroxy and amino functional groups, respectively. However, those substrates were partially oxidized and starting materials remained in the reaction mixture. Therefore, we increased the **PS-DIB** reagent up to 2-2.5 equivalents and there was no remaining starting material, giving the products **1b** and **1f** in quantitative yields (Table 3.9, entry 1 and 5). Those results demonstrated that our **PS-DIB** oxidation is selective to oxidize thiol group without touching other sensitive functional group such as hydroxy and amino groups to oxidize. We hypothesized that hydroxy and amino groups on thiols 1b and 1f may interact with PS-DIB resulting in the loss of its reactivity. The nitrogen-containing heteroaromatic thiols such as 1h-j were converted to disulfides 2h-j in moderate yields in the range between 55–83% (Table 3.9, entry 8-10). Influence of the strong binding group between N heteroatom in thiols and PS-DIB had effect on yield. We believe that some N heteroatoms in thiols were oxidized via PS-DIB. Therefore, a large amount of PS-DIB was necessary. Moreover, heterocyclic thiols 1m containing two heteroatoms could be converted to disulfides 2m in excellent yields (Table 3.4, entry 11).





2	1c	н₃с⇔ѕн	1.0	91
3	1d	SH	1.0	95
4	1e	SH	1.0	94
5	1f	SH NH ₂	2.0	81
6	1a	CI	0.7	89
7	1g	Me	0.7	97
8	1h	N SH	0.7	83
9	1i	SH N	1.5	70
10	Br 1j		1.5	55
11	1m	N N SH	0.7	97

[a] Isolated yield after silica gel chromatography

3.2.4 Regeneration and reuse of PS-DIB

After oxidization of thiol into the disulfide using **DIB**, it will generate PS-I as byproduct as shown in scheme 3.5. The solid iodopolystyrene (PS-I) could be removed from the reaction mixture and re-oxidized with sodium perborate. The

loading of (diacetoxyiodo)phenyl group could be analyzed again by iodometry titration before the reuse in oxidation of thiol.



Scheme 3.5 Utilization of Polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene reagent for preparation of disulfide. \bigcirc = polystyrene

Therefore, we used **PS-DIB** for oxidation of thiol and then reused for 2 times as shown in table 3.10. The freshly prepared **PS-DIB** was able to convert thiol **1a** to disulfide **2a** in 83% yield in 60 minutes without the remaining starting materiel (table 10, entry 1). After filtration and washed by MeOH, iodopolystyrene was re-oxidized by sodium perborate, giving the loading of (diacetoxyiodo)phenyl group in 2.0 mmol/g (Table 10, entry 2). The reused **PS-DIB** was able to oxidize thiol **1a** to disulfide **2a** in 78 %yield under the same condition. This suggested that the **PS-DIB** can be regenerated and reused for oxidation of thiol without losing its efficientcy. Table 3.10 Regeneration and reuse of PS-DIB for oxidation of 1a



Entry	Cycles ^[a]	(Diacetoxyiodo)phenyl	%yield ^[b]	Time
		group loading on polymer		(min)
1	1 st	1.67	83	60
2	2 nd	2.00	78	60

[a] Reaction conditions: 4-chlorothiophenol (1.0 equiv.), **PS-DIB** (0.7 equiv.), *i*-PrOH, r.t., under air 60 min. [b] Isolated yield after silica gel chromatography

จุฬาลงกรณมหาวทยาลย Chulalongkorn University

CHAPTER IV

In summary, we developed a simple and efficient method for oxidation of thiols to disulfides using cheap and less toxic (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (DIB) reagent. The optimization study showed that 1.0 equivalent of (diacetoxyiodo)benzene in i-PrOH at room temperature for 5 minute was able to convert a variety of thiols containing aliphatic, aliphatic cyclic, aromatic and heterocyclic substituent to the corresponding disulfides in excellent yields. Moreover, we successfully synthesized polystyrene-supported (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (PS-DIB) from iodination of polystyrene followed by the oxidation with NaBO₃⁴H₂O. The loading of (diacetoxyiodo)phenyl group was determined by iodometry titration and found to be 1.26-2.00 mmol/g. The prepared PS-DIB was able to convert thiols to the corresponding disulfide in fair to good yields in 60 minute. Importantly, byproduct iodopolystyrene could be separated from the reaction mixtures by simple filtration and regenerated into **PS-DIB** by oxidation with NaBO₃⁴H₂O. The **PS-DIB** was able to reuse for disulfide synthesis with no loss of activity. The key advantages of this reaction were lower toxicity, low cost of DIB reagent, recycle of PS-DIB and mild reaction conditions (room temperature, undried solvents and open flask).

REFERENCES

- Maruyama, K., Nagasawa, H., and Suzuki, A. 2,2'-Bispyridyl disulfide rapidly induces intramolecular disulfide bonds in peptides. <u>Peptides</u> 20(7) (1999): 881-884.
- [2] Bulaj, G. Formation of disulfide bonds in proteins and peptides. <u>Biotechnology</u> <u>Advances</u> 23(1) (2005): 87-92.
- [3] Das, A., Naskar, N., and Basu, D.K. Thiophosphoryl disulfides as crosslinking agents for chloroprene rubber. <u>Journal of Applied Polymer Science</u> 91(3) (2004): 1913-1919.
- [4] Akdag, A., Webb, T., and Worley, S.D. Oxidation of thiols to disulfides with monochloro poly(styrenehydantoin) beads. <u>Tetrahedron Letters</u> 47(21) (2006): 3509-3510.
- [5] Pryor, W.A., Church, D.F., Govindan, C.K., and Crank, G. Oxidation of thiols by nitric oxide and nitrogen dioxide: synthetic utility and toxicological implications. <u>The Journal of Organic Chemistry</u> 47(1) (1982): 156-159.
- [6] Evans, B.J., Doi, J.T., and Musker, W.K. Fluorine-19 NMR study of the reaction of p-fluorobenzenethiol and disulfide with periodate and other selected oxidizing agents. <u>The Journal of Organic Chemistry</u> 55(8) (1990): 2337-2344.
- [7] Silveira, C.C. and Mendes, S.R. Catalytic oxidation of thiols to disulfides using iodine and CeCl₃·7H₂O in graphite. <u>Tetrahedron Letters</u> 48(42) (2007): 7469-7471.
- [8] Tajbakhsh, M., Hosseinzadeh, R., and Shakoori, A. 2,6-Dicarboxypyridinium chlorochromate: an efficient and selective reagent for the oxidation of thiols to disulfides and sulfides to sulfoxides. <u>Tetrahedron Letters</u> 45(9) (2004): 1889-1893.
- [9] Shaabani, A. and Lee, D.G. Solvent free permanganate oxidations. <u>Tetrahedron</u> <u>Letters</u> 42(34) (2001): 5833-5836.

- [10] Ali, M.H. and McDermott, M. Oxidation of thiols to disulfides with molecular bromine on hydrated silica gel support. <u>Tetrahedron Letters</u> 43(35) (2002): 6271-6273.
- [11] Jalalian, N. Development and Applications of Hypervalent Iodine Compounds
 Powerful Arylation and Oxidation Reagents. <u>Department of Organic</u> <u>Chemistry, Stockholm University</u> (2012): 71.
- [12] Zhdankin, V.V. Hypervalent iodine (III) reagents in organic synthesis. <u>Arkivoc</u> 1 (2009): 1-62.
- [13] Zanka, A., Takeuchi, H., and Kubota, A. Large-Scale Preparation of Iodobenzene Dichloride and Efficient Monochlorination of 4-Aminoacetophenone. <u>Organic Process Research & Development</u> 2(4) (1998): 270-273.
- [14] Tohma, H., Iwata, M., Maegawa, T., and Kita, Y. Novel and efficient oxidative biaryl coupling reaction of alkylarenes using a hypervalent iodine(III) reagent. <u>Tetrahedron Letters</u> 43(50) (2002): 9241-9244.
- [15] Arrica, M.A. and Wirth, T. Fluorinations of Q-Seleno Carboxylic Acid Derivatives with Hypervalent (Difluoroiodo)toluene. <u>European Journal of Organic</u> <u>Chemistry</u> 2005(2) (2005): 395-403.
- [16] Das, B., Holla, H., Mahender, G., Banerjee, J., and Ravinder Reddy, M. Hypervalent iodine-mediated interaction of aldoximes with activated alkenes including Baylis–Hillman adducts: a new and efficient method for the preparation of nitrile oxides from aldoximes. <u>Tetrahedron Letters</u> 45(39) (2004): 7347-7350.
- [17] Piancatelli, G. and Leonelli, F. Oxidation of Nerol to Neral with Iodosobenzene and TEMPO. <u>Organic Syntheses</u> 83 (2006): 18-23.
- [18] Liu, W.-B., Chen, C., Zhang, Q., and Zhu, Z.-B. Organic synthesis using (diacetoxyiodo)benzene (DIB): Unexpected and novel oxidation of 3-oxobutanamides to 2,2-dihalo-N-phenylacetamides. <u>Beilstein Journal of Organic</u> <u>Chemistry</u> 8 (2012): 344-348.

- [19] Telvekar, V.N. and Sasane, K.A. Simple and Facile Benzylic CH Oxidation using (Diacetoxyiodo)benzene and Catalytic Sodium Azide. <u>Synthetic</u> <u>Communications</u> 42 (2012): 1325–1329.
- [20] Prasad, V., Kale, R.R., Mishra, B.B., Kumar, D., and Tiwari, V.K. Diacetoxyiodobenzene Mediated One-Pot Synthesis of Diverse Carboxamides from Aldehydes. <u>Organic Letters</u> 14(12) (2012): 2936-2939.
- [21] Qian, P.-C., et al. (Diacetoxyiodo)benzene-Mediated Oxygenation of Benzylic C(sp3)–H Bonds with N-Hydroxyamides at Room Temperature. <u>European</u> <u>Journal of Organic Chemistry</u> 2015(8) (2015): 1680-1684.
- [22] Ghosh, H., Yella, R., Nath, J., and Patel, B.K. Desulfurization Mediated by Hypervalent Iodine(III): A Novel Strategy for the Construction of Heterocycles. <u>European Journal of Organic Chemistry</u> 2008(36) (2008): 6189-6196.
- [23] Bhong, B.Y., Thorat, P.B., and Karade, N.N. Oxidation of 3,4-dihydropyrimidin-2(1H)-thione using (diacetoxyiodo)benzene: unprecedented formation of substituted 2-(1,4-dihydropyrimidin-2-ylthio)pyrimidine. <u>Tetrahedron Letters</u> 54(14) (2013): 1862-1865.
- [24] Teduka, T. and Togo, H. I₂-Mediated Photochemical Preparation of 2-Substituted 1,3-Dioxolanes and Tetrahydrofurans from Alcohols with Polymer-Supported Hypervalent Iodine Reagent, PSDIB. <u>ChemInform</u> 36(35) (2005): 0923–0926.
- [25] Chen, F.-E., Xie, B., Zhang, P., Zhao, J.-F., Wang, H., and Zhao, L. An Efficient and Green Oxidation of Vicinal Diols to Aldehydes Using Polymer-Supported (Diacetoxyiodo)benzene as the Oxidant. <u>ChemInform</u> 38(28) (2007): 0619-0622.
- [26] Kumar, A., Maurya, R.A., and Ahmad, P. Diversity Oriented Synthesis of Benzimidazole and Benzoxa/(thia)zole Libraries through Polymer-Supported Hypervalent Iodine Reagent. <u>Journal of Combinatorial Chemistry</u> 11(2) (2009): 198-201.
- [27] Zhu, C., Ji, L, Wei, Y. A Facile and Efficient One-Pot Synthesis of Nitriles from Aldehydes Using Hypervalent Iodine(III) Reagents in Aqueous Ammonium Acetate. <u>Synthesis</u> 2010(18) (2010): 3121-3126.

- [28] Gondi, S.R., Son, D. Y., Biehl, E. R., Vempati, R. K. Easy and Rapid Method for Disulfide Syntheses Using Nanophase-Manganese (VII) Oxide Coated Clay. <u>Phosphorus, Sulfur, and Silicon and the Related Elements</u> 185(1) (2010): 34-39.
- [29] Thurow, S., et al. Base-free oxidation of thiols to disulfides using selenium ionic liquid. <u>Tetrahedron Letters</u> 52(5) (2011): 640-643.
- [30] Attri, p., Gupta, S. and Kumar, R. Green methodology for the preparation of disulfide. <u>Green Chemistry Letters and Reviews</u> 5(1) (2012): 33-42.
- [31] Oba, M., Tanaka, K., Nishiyama, K., and Ando, W. Aerobic Oxidation of Thiols to Disulfides Catalyzed by Diaryl Tellurides under Photosensitized Conditions. <u>The Journal of Organic Chemistry</u> 76(10) (2011): 4173-4177.
- [32] He, Y., Hang, D. and Lu, M. A Simple and Practical Method for the Oxidation of Thiols to Disulfides at Mild Conditions Without Solvents. <u>Phosphorus, Sulfur,</u> and Silicon and the Related Elements 187(9) (2012): 1118-1124.
- [33] Rajabi, F., Kakeshpour, T., and Saidi, M.R. Supported iron oxide nanoparticles: Recoverable and efficient catalyst for oxidative S-S coupling of thiols to disulfides. <u>Catalysis Communications</u> 40(0) (2013): 13-17.
- [34] Bayraq, S.S., Nikseresht, A., and Khosravi, I. (NH₄)₆Mo₇O₂₄·4H₂O as an Efficient, Selective, and Reusable Catalyst for the Oxidation of Thiols to Disulfides Using Potassium Bromate. <u>Phosphorus, Sulfur, and Silicon and the Related Elements</u> 188(9) (2012): 1236-1243.
- [35] Li, X.-B., et al. Mechanistic Insights into the Interface-Directed Transformation of Thiols into Disulfides and Molecular Hydrogen by Visible-Light Irradiation of Quantum Dots. <u>Angewandte Chemie</u> 126(8) (2014): 2117-2121.
- [36] Hossain, M.D. and Kitamura, T. Alternative, Easy and Efficient Preparation of Poly[4-(diacetoxyiodo)styrene] from Poly(4-iodostyrene) Using Sodium Perborate as the Oxidant. <u>ChemInform</u> 37(33) (2006): 1253-1256.
- [37] Lucas, H.J., Kennedy, E. R. and Formo, M. W. Iodoxybenzene. <u>Organic</u> <u>Syntheses</u> 22 (1942): 70.
- [38] Prat, D., Hayler, J., and Wells, A. A survey of solvent selection guides. <u>Green</u> <u>Chemistry</u> 16(10) (2014): 4546-4551.



จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University



จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University



Figure A1 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.2, entry 1)



Figure A2 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.2, entry 2)



Figure A3 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.2, entry 3)



Figure A4 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.2, entry 4)



Figure A5 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 1)



Figure A6 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3, entry 2)



Figure A7 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 3)



Figure A8 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 4)



Figure A9 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 5)



Figure A10 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 6)



Figure A11 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 7)



Figure A12 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.3, entry 8)



 $\sum_{7.29}^{7.41}$ $\sum_{7.29}^{7.29}$

2.64 3.58 3.56 3.56 2.64 2.64 2.64 2.64 2.64 2.65 1.65 1.55 1


















Figure A32 ¹³C NMR spectrum of 2j (CDCl₃)

 $\boldsymbol{<}_{8.45}^{8.45}$

77.57 7.65 7.7.65 7.7.65 7.45 7.45



















Wavenumbers (cm-1)

Figure A43 FT-IR spectrum of 2e



Figure A44 FT-IR spectrum of 2f



Figure A45 FT-IR spectrum of 2g



Figure A46 FT-IR spectrum of 2h



Figure A47 FT-IR spectrum of 2i







Figure A49 FT-IR spectrum of 2k





Figure A51 FT-IR spectrum of 2m



Figure A52 FT-IR spectrum of polystyrene (PS)







Figure A54 FT-IR spectrum of PS-DIB



Figure A55 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.6, entry 1)



Figure A56 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.6, entry 2)



Figure A57 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.6, entry 3)



Figure A58 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.6, entry 4)



Figure A59 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.7, entry 1)



Figure A60 HPLC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.7, entry 2)



Figure A61 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.7, entry 3)



Figure A62 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.7, entry 4)



Figure A63 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.8, entry 1)



Figure A64 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.8, entry 2)



Figure A65 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.8, entry 3)



Figure A66 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.8, entry 5)







Figure A68 GC chromatogram of 2a (Table 3.8, entry 7)

VITA

Miss Watanya Krailat was born on June 28, 1989 in Chiang Rai, Thailand. She graduated with Bachelor Degree of Science in Chemistry from Chiang Mai University in 2012. Then, she started a Master's Degree in Petrochemistry and Polymer Science program at Chulalongkorn University. She was supported by research grant for this Master's Degree thesis from the 90th Anniversary of Chulalongkorn University Fund (Ratchadaphiseksomphot Endowment Fund).

Her present address is 189, Moo 4, Tambon Bandu, Amphoe Muang, Chiang Rai, 57100, Thailand.



จุฬาลงกรณีมหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University